
          

 

 

ARBORWOOD 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT 
 

LEE COUNTY 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

JULY 16, 2018 
9:00 A.M. 

 

 
 

 

 
Special District Services, Inc. 

27499 Riverview Center Boulevard, #253 
Bonita Springs, FL 33134 

www.arborwoodcdd.org 
561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 



 
AGENDA 

 ARBORWOOD COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
Amenity Center Community Room 

Somerset at the Plantation 
10401 Dartington Drive 

Fort Myers, Florida, 33913 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

July 16, 2018 
9:00 a.m. 

 
 

A. Call to Order 

B. Proof of Publication……………………………………………………………………………………..Page 1 

C. Establish Quorum 

D. Additions or Deletions to Agenda  

E. Comments from the Public for Items Not on the Agenda 

F. Approval of Minutes 

1. June 11, 2018 Special Board Meeting Minutes………………………………………………….....Page 3 

G. Old Business 

1. Discussion and Approval of Changes Regarding Fiscal Year 2018/2019 Proposed Budget............Page 8 

2. Update on Street Lighting Project 

3. Update on Somerset Preserve Activity 

H. New Business 

1. Consider Approval of Woods & Wetlands Somerset Exotic Removal.............................................Page 24 

2. Consider Approval of Fountain Specifications.................................................................................Page 26 

3. Discussion Regarding Pond/Preserve Water Levels 

I. Administrative Matters 

1. Manager’s Report 

2. Engineer Report 

3. Field Inspectors Report 

J. Board Members Comments 

K. Adjourn 



News-Press, The 
July 3, 2018 
Miscellaneous Notices 

NOTICE OF MEETING ARBORWOOD COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT The 
Board of Supervisors of the Arborwood Community Development District will hold a 
Board Meeting on July 16, 2018, at 9:00 a.m. at the Amenity Center Community Room 
located at Somerset at The Plantation, 10401 Dartington Drive, Fort Myers, Florida 
33913. The Board Meeting is open to the public and will be conducted in accordance 
with the provisions of Florida law for community development districts. The meeting may 
be continued in progress without additional notice to a time, date, and location stated on 
the record. A copy of the agenda for the meeting may be obtained from the District's 
website or by contacting the District Manager, Special District Services, located at 
27499 Riverview Center Blvd., #253, Bonita Springs, Florida 34134. There may be 
occasions when one or more Supervisors will participate by telephone. Pursuant to 
provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special 
accommodations to participate in this Board Meeting is asked to advise the District 
Office at least forty-eight (48) hours before the meeting by contacting the District 
Manager at (239) 444-5790. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the 
Florida Relay Service at 1 (800) 955-8770, who can aid you in contacting the District 
Office. A person who decides to appeal any decision made at the meeting with respect 
to any matter considered at the meeting is advised that person will need a record of the 
proceedings and that accordingly, the person may need to ensure that a verbatim 
record of the proceedings is made including the testimony and evidence upon which the 
appeal is to be based. Meetings may be cancelled from time to time without advertised 
notice. Kathleen Dailey District Manager Arborwood Community Development District 
www.arborwoodcdd.org AD# 3010185 July 3, 2018 

 

Page 1



ARBORWOOD COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 

JUNE 11, 2018 

Page 1 of 6 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The June 11, 2018, Special Board Meeting of the Arborwood Community Development District 
was called to order at 9:00 a.m. in the Amenity Center Community Room at Somerset at the 
Plantation located at 10401 Dartington Drive, Fort Myers, Florida 33913. 
 
B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Proof of publication was presented that notice of the Special Board Meeting had been published 
in the Fort Myers News-Press on June 1, 2018, as legally required.  
 
C. ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
 
It was determined that the attendance of the following Supervisors constituted a quorum and it was 
in order to proceed with the meeting: 
 
Chairman Terry Hammond  Present 
Vice Chairman John Hamilton Present 
Supervisor Lawrence Carr Present 
Supervisor Joan Pattison  Present 
Supervisor Gary Franz Present 

 
Staff members in attendance were: 
 
District Manager Kathleen Dailey Special District Services, Inc. 
General Counsel Wes Haber (via telephone) Hopping Green & Sams, P.A. 
District Engineer Josh Evans JR Evans Engineering 
Field Inspector Bohdan Hirniak  

 
Others present were:  Michael McElligott (via phone) of Special District Services, Inc.; Kamli 
Abdulghani & Andrew Dailidonis (via phone) of Hampton Golf; Mike Myers of Passarella & 
Associates; David Caldwell of Lennar and the following District residents: Tom Dinella, Chris 
Anderson, Jeff Gordish and Jack Aycock. 
 
D. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
Ms. Dailey requested, and it was the consensus of the Board, to take the budget, the Field 
Inspector’s Report and Item H1 regarding the Fountain first, before other items.  Those items were 
considered next. 
 
E. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 

Page 2



ARBORWOOD COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 

JUNE 11, 2018 

Page 2 of 6 
 

Mr. Aycock asked about the monitoring of the control structures that had been brought up at the 
previous meeting.  Mr. Evans advised that he would report on this matter under his Engineer’s 
Report. 
 
F. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 1.  May 21, 2018, Regular Board Meeting 
 
The May 21, 2018, Regular Board Meeting minutes were presented for approval. 
 
Mr. Haber indicated that he was present at the meeting, not over the telephone. 
 
Mr. Hammond had the following revisions: Add “without notice” to the 3rd line under H4 regarding 
the budget “…the budget cannot be increased without notice…” He also stated that in H2 the first 
sentence had “accidentally” in the wrong place.  The sentence should read “Jeff Gordish advised 
that he had sent a letter to the regarding accidental invasive and dead plant removal…”  the next 
line should read “He stated that the HOA (not development) was committed to working with the 
CDD…” 
 
Mr. Hamilton stated that under Item “E” the word “Botanical” should be “Botanica.” 
 
Mr. Carr stated that the first line under Item “J” should be “role” not roll 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Hamilton, seconded by Mr. Franz and passed unanimously approving 
the May 21, 2018, Regular Board Meeting minutes, as amended. 
 
G. OLD BUSINESS 
 1.  Update on Street Lighting Project 
 
There was no update on this item. 
 
H. NEW BUSINESS 
 1.  Update on Approval of Agreement and Easement with Golf Course Regarding 
Fountain 
 
Mr. Haber indicated that per the discussion at the last meeting, the financials of Hampton Golf are 
not exempt from public record, so Hampton Golf has offered a performance bond instead of 
providing such in the amount of $50,000.  Ms. Abdulghani stated that the fountain was valued at 
$20,000, so they feel the bond is in a sufficient amount.  She further stated that Travelers Insurance 
would provide the bond and certificate of liability insurance.  There was discussion if the bond 
would be perpetual or annual and Ms. Abdulghani indicated that she would provide a document 
where the configuration is perpetual and covers all obligations. Mr. Hamilton noted that a 60-day 
notice should be given if the bond is ever going away. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Franz, seconded by Mr. Carr and passed unanimously authorizing Mr. 
Hamilton to sign the agreement on behalf of the District, subject to Mr. Haber’s approval. 

Page 3



ARBORWOOD COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 

JUNE 11, 2018 

Page 3 of 6 
 

 
 2.  Update on Somerset Preserve Activity 
 
Mr. Haber advised that it had been determined that the HOA’s removal was in an area that is a 
substantial issue and that they indicated they would make whole working with Mike Myers and 
Mr. Evans and the appropriate agencies.  Mr. Evans added that the clearing was of dead tree 
material as opposed to removing live material, as was done on the golf course.  Mr. Hammond 
noted that all costs should be borne by the Somerset HOA.  Mr. Haber indicated that a formal 
agreement should be entered into with Somerset so that the District does not spend any funds on 
this matter.  There was a consensus of the Board to have Mr. Myers look into the issue and 
determine the appropriate course of action and have Mr. Haber develop an agreement with 
Somerset regarding costs. 
 
 3.  Update on Environmental Budget and Mitigation Parcels 
 
Mr. Myers advised this was covered under the budget.  There was discussion on the various parcels 
and Mr. Myers stated he could get the Board a map that identifies the preserves and acreage. 
 
 4.  Consider Resolution No. 2018-05 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2018/2019 Proposed 
Budget 
 
Resolution No. 2018-05 was presented, entitled: 
 
 

RESOLUTION 2018-05 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
ARBORWOOD COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT APPROVING 
PROPOSED BUDGETS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2018/2019 AND SETTING A 
PUBLIC HEARING THEREON PURSUANT TO FLORIDA LAW; 
ADDRESSING TRANSMITTAL, POSTING AND PUBLICATION 
REQUIREMENTS; ADDRESSING SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 
Mr. McElligott advised that he had added flow way maintenance to the budget for Somerset and 
went over the O&M expenses that were going up, which require notices.  There was discussion 
that the flow way should be charged to the overall development.  Regarding the increase in 
assessments, Mr. Hammond asked for the amount of the assessments going up.  Mr. McElligott 
responded that it was a total of approximately $30,000 which equates to $4 to $5 per unit.  There 
was discussion on lowering the budget so that notices would not need to be mailed.  Mr. Haber 
stated that the Board could approve the proposed budget today and amend it at the next meeting 
so that notices would not need to be sent out.  Mr. McElligott stated that the Board was currently 
under budget in every line item.  Mr. Hammond noted that it seemed logical that adjustments could 
be made to the maintenance and engineering line items, so that notices do not need to be sent to 
anyone except for Parcel C.  There was a consensus to do so.  Mr. McElligott suggested a 

Page 4



ARBORWOOD COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 

JUNE 11, 2018 

Page 4 of 6 
 

conference call with himself, Mike Myers, Mr. Evans and Mr. Hammond to go over where to make 
cuts and Mr. Hammond added that if Board Members have any specific cuts, that they should send 
those to Mr. McElligott. 
 
Mr. McElligott then excused himself from the meeting due to a prior commitment. 
 
Mr. Hamilton stated that he was disappointed in the budget process, as it was not fair to the 
residents that the input from SDS was for only 45 minutes.  He added that he felt that notes should 
had been given to the Board regarding the process as well as a narrative giving input on the various 
line items.  Mr. Franz added that details for the budget should have been footnoted.  Mr. Hammond 
advised that he would call SDS about the process, as he felt there were too many loose ends and 
lack of attention to detail for this stage of the budget. 
 
A motion was made by Mrs. Pattison, seconded by Mr. Franz and passed unanimously to adopt 
Resolution No. 2018-05, and for staff to continue to look for ways to decrease the various line 
items, so that assessments do not increase; setting the Public Hearing for August 20, 2018. 
 
 5.  Consider Approval of WCI Plat and True-Up Abeyance 
 
David Caldwell of Lennar stated that Phases 2b and 2c plats are not ready for consideration.  He 
stated that an additional $14,902 was owed, due to a change in ERUs, for a total of $353,051.  He 
asked the Board to consider an abeyance of this true-up payment.  Mr. Hammond stated that Pulte 
had made their true-up payments and asked how this would be different. Mr. Haber stated that the 
agreement with Lennar contemplates the Board’s authority to authorize an abeyance where Pulte 
contractually was not entitled to an abeyance.  He indicated in this case the Board has the right to 
grant it, but is not obligated to do so. There was general discussion on the unit counts and how 
much it can change.  Mr. Hamilton asked if there was any financial risk to the District and Mr. 
Haber stated that if there are not enough properties and the developers default, it would adversely 
impact the bond holders.  Mr. Hamilton indicated that he did not see any substantial reason to do 
this and Mr. Hammond added that Pulte did the same thing and gave us the check 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Hamilton, seconded by Mr. Franz and passed unanimously denying 
the request to hold the true-up payment of Lennar in abeyance.   
 
 6.  Discussion Regarding Additional Light Shields 
 
Ms. Dailey advised that a request had been received from residents in Marina By for additional 
light shields.  Mr. Hammond stated that the residences did not exist when the lights were put in.  
He added that Norm Trebilcock had visited with the residents and felt the shields were warranted 
at a cost of $5,400 for 18 locations.  Mr. Carr stated that the shields should be placed on three sides 
and not just the back.  It was the consensus of the Board that Mr. Carr coordinate the project with 
Norm Trebilcock. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Hamilton, seconded by Mrs. Pattison and unanimously passed to do 
the project and make sure three sides are covered. 

Page 5



ARBORWOOD COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 

JUNE 11, 2018 

Page 5 of 6 
 

 
I. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
 1.  Manager’s Report 
 
Ms. Dailey reminded the Board that the next meeting was scheduled for July 16, 2018.  Mr. 
Hammond noted that he would participate by telephone. 
 
 2.  Engineer’s Report 
 
Mr. Evans stated that the subaqueous pipe inspection was under contract and will begin next week. 
 
He stated that he had contacted Pulte regarding lake bank restorations before turnover, but has not 
yet heard back from them.  
 
Regarding Pulte installing bulk heads in a lake and not notifying the Board, Mr. Evans indicated 
that they have completed the project, so he has asked them to provide surveys that they did not 
cause siltation. 
 
Regarding Mr. Aycock’s question regarding control structures, he stated that he and Mr. Haber 
had discussed and confirmed that the permit obligated the HOA to maintain the outfall. 
 
 3.  Field Inspector Report 
 
Mr. Hirniak advised that the previous proposal from Clarke to spray the flow way was reasonable 
and he does not recommend bringing in another contractor, as we would need to bid the entire 
contract.  He recommended the Board authorize one event and future events could be considered 
at another time, since time is of the essence. 
 
A motion was made by Mrs. Pattison, seconded by Mr. Hamilton and passed unanimously 
authorizing Clarke to do a one-time spraying of the flow way at a cost of $2,265. 
 
Mr. Hirniak noted that two of the lakes were having problems and were turning green, as plankton 
had developed.  He indicated that they are back to normal after Clarke’s treatment.  Mr. Hirniak 
noted that there was excessive algae and odor near the 4th green on the golf course and that Clarke 
was spraying, but the irrigation pump is causing the odor. He noted, in general, that all the lake 
levels are increasing due to the rains. 
 
Mr. Hirniak indicated that all the lakes have different sets of numbers between Clarke, Mr. Evans 
and the developer. Mr. Evans stated that it can difficult with no consistent numbering. 
 
J. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
There were no comments from the Board Members. 
 
K. ADJOURNMENT 

Page 6



ARBORWOOD COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 

JUNE 11, 2018 

Page 6 of 6 
 

 
There being no further business to come before the Board, a motion was made by Mr. Carr, 
seconded by Mr. Franz and passed unanimously to adjourn the Special Board Meeting at 11:45 
a.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
__________________________________ __________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary   Chair/Vice-Chair 

Page 7



Arborwood
Community Development District

 Proposed Budget
  Fiscal Year 2018/2019

 October 1, 2018 - September 30, 2019

Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24


















T
R

E
E

L
IN

E
 A

V
E

DARTINGTON DR

MILFORD PL

SURREY PL

PLANTATION GARDENS DR

K
IN

G
S M

ILL W
A

Y

CA-5

CA-6

CA-7

CA-8

CA-10

CA-11

CA-9

CA-12

CA-13

CA-14

CA-15

CA-16
CA-17



























































































































CA-5

Melaleuca, Earleaf
acacia, Java plum

Mostly Brazilian
pepper along edge

Page 25



Page 26



Page 27


	Arborwood Community Development District - July 16, 2018 Regular Board Meeting Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	June 11, 2018 Special Board Meeting Minutes
	Discussion and Approval of Changes Regarding Fiscal Year 2018/2019 Proposed Budget
	Consider Approval of Woods & Wetlands Somerset Exotic Removal
	Consider Approval of Fountain Specifications




